
1 
 

PENN TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
JANUARY 5, 2017 

 
 Vice Chairman Barbara Mahan called to order a meeting of the Penn Township 
Planning Commission at 7:00 P.M. on Thursday, January 5, 2017 at the Penn Township 
Municipal Building.  Also present were planning members Clayton Black, Justin Heiland, 
Joseph Klunk, Henry Senatore, and Ray Van de Castle along with Township Engineer 
Bortner, Zoning Officer Swanner, and Assistant to the Engineer Garrett.  Planner David 
Baker was absent with notice. 
 
 The Planning Commission took action to reorganize.  Planners Klunk/Mahan 
moved to nominate David Baker Chairman.  Motion carried on a 6-0 vote.  Planners Van 
de Castle/Senatore moved to nominate Barbara Mahan Vice Chairman.  Motion carried 
on a 5-0 vote with Planner Mahan abstaining.   
 
 The planners approved the December 1, 2016 Planning Commission minutes as 
submitted. 
 
 The planners received the following zoning appeals and made the following 
recommendations:  None. 
 
 The planners received the following waiver or exoneration requests:   None. 
 
 The planners reviewed the following Subdivision and Land Development plans 
and made the following recommendations: 
 
P01-28 – HIGH POINTE @ ROJEN FARMS, 751 Frederick Street, Hanover, PA 
17331.  A preliminary two hundred twenty-seven (227) lot subdivision located on 
Grandview Road in the R-22 and R-40 zones. (SOUTH).  There was no action taken 
on this plan. 
  
P03-30 – MUSTANG POINTE, Mummert Enterprises, 8 Stuart Avenue, Hanover, PA 
17331.  A preliminary subdivision plan to create 190 new residential building lots.  
The property is located between Breezewood and Bowman Road in the R-8 zone.    
There was no action taken on this plan. 
 
P04-25 – SOUTH HEIGHTS, J. A. Myers Building & Development, 160 Ram Drive, 
Hanover, PA 17331.  A preliminary subdivision plan submitted to create fifty-nine 
(59) single-family building lots.  The property is located within the southeast 
intersection of Cooper Road and Westminster Avenue, in the R-22 zone.   There 
was no action taken on this plan. 
.     
P15-14 – HANOVER STORAGE, LLC, Hanover Storage, LLC, 330 Dubs Church 
Road, Hanover, PA 17331.  A final land development plan submitted in order to 
construct mini-storage warehouses.  The property is located at 900 Old Ridge 
Rod in the Industrial Zone.   There was no action taken on this plan. 



2 
 

 
P16-06 – BROOKSIDE HEIGHTS – PHASE 3, Brookside LLC (Paul Burkentine, 
member), 1500 Baltimore Street, Hanover, PA 17331. A final subdivision plan to 
create eighty-five (85) residential lots to construct single family attached and 
multifamily dwellings. The property is located east of South Center Street and 
west of Meadowbrook Drive in the R-8 zone.   There was no action taken on this plan. 
 
P16-07 – PROPOSED MEDICAL OFFICE FACILITY, Wellspan Properties, Inc., 2545 
South George Street, Suite 1, York, PA 17405.  A preliminary/final land 
development plan submitted in order to construct a medical office facility.  The 
property is located adjacent to 1275 Baltimore Street (M&T Bank) located to the 
north and west in the S/C zone.  There was no action taken on this plan.   

 
P16-12 – MEADOW SPRINGS, LLC,  1500 Baltimore Street, Hanover, PA 17331.  A 
final reverse subdivision and land development plan submitted in order to 
construct seventeen (17) multi-family units.  The property is located at Brookside 
Avenue in the R08 zone.    There was no action taken on this plan. 
 
P16-13 – TRUENORTH WELLNESS SERVICES, 625 West Elm Avenue, Hanover, PA 
17331.  A land development plan submitted in order to construct a medical clinic 
and facility.  The property is located at 1161-1181 Westminster Avenue in the R-22 
zone.    
  Byron Trout, Gordon Brown & Associates, represented this plan.  He said 
the only difference in the plan from the last time the Planning Commission saw it is they 
added a four foot chain-link fence around the stormwater pond.  He said the first page 
also shows the variance for the parking spaces and the curb and sidewalk.  Engineer 
Bortner said the Board will review the improvement bond at their February 7, 2017 
Public Works Committee meeting. Mr. Trout said the plans have been submitted to 
Penn DOT and York County Conservation District (YCCD).  They have a completeness 
notification letter from YCCD and are waiting for their final review.   There is a Highway 
Occupancy Permit note on the plan and it should be a simple approval for the driveway. 
He has been working with the Penn Township Public Works department on the 
extension of the connection for the waterline.  Commissioner Van de Castle asked if the 
York County Planning Commission comments came in and they did in October.  
Commissioner Klunk asked if the planners should recommend favorably before the 
outside approvals are complete.  Engineer Bortner said it can be approved with a 
condition concerning outside approvals and gave Meadow Spring LLC as an example of 
a plan that was favorably recommended before all outside approvals were in.  He said it 
won’t go before the Board of Commissioners for final approval until everything is 
received.  Mr. Trout said he doesn’t foresee any additional changes to the plan.  The 
YCCD might comment on the erosion and sediment but that wouldn’t change the plan.  
They already had a scoping meeting with Penn DOT and their traffic study has been 
approved.   
 



3 
 

 Planners Klunk/Mahan moved for a favorable recommendation on P16-13 to the 
Penn Township Board of Commissions with the condition that all outside approvals be 
received.  6-0 
 

SL16-04 – RUBY A. BENTZEL, 1045 Bair Road, Hanover, PA 17331.  A Subdivision 
plan submitted to create two (2) residential lots.  The property is located at 1045 
Bair Road in the R-22 zone.   
 
 Reg Baugher, Hanover Land Services, represented this plan.  He said Ruby 
Bentzel would like to cut a ten acre lot out of her thirty acres on Bair Road.  The ten 
acres will encompass all the structures on the farm.  Planner Black asked what the 
zoning district is and Zoning Officer Swanner said it’s in R-22.  Planner Black asked if 
the vacant lot was looking for a permit and Mr. Baugher said not at this time.  Engineer 
Bortner said he doesn’t see any way to stop someone from getting a permit on it in the 
future, so it’s a possibility.  Planner Black said he knows there’s no need for road 
improvements on a single lot, but asked how that might affect the future.  The ten acres 
is in the middle of the property and will be missing road improvements should the large 
lot be sold and developed.  Engineer Bortner said a developer may purchase the 
remaining twenty acres and build on it and road improvements will be required at that 
time.  He agrees it makes for an awkward chunk of five hundred feet of roadway in the 
middle.  Mr. Buagher said they are dedicating right-of-way to the Township.    
 
 Planners Senatore/Klunk moved for a favorable recommendation to the Penn 
Township Board of Commissioners on this plan.  Carried on a 6-0 note.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
 Janice Bortner, Rick Bortner, and Mary Ritchey all from Shephard’s Fold Daycare 
were present to ask questions about purchasing property to start a new daycare.  They 
are looking at 701 Black Rock Road and wanted to know if the property would work for 
a daycare.  Zoning Officer Swanner said they’ll need a special exception to put a 
daycare on the property.  He explained they’ll need to apply to come before the 
Planning Commission and the Zoning Hearing Board to have the special exception 
reviewed.  He offered to make copies of the required information.  He said they will 
need to show evidence they are licensed through the State before they are allowed to 
open a daycare. 
 Reg Baugher, Hanover Land Services, asked if road improvements will be 
required at this property.  Commissioner Klunk said Black Rock is a State road so the 
Township won’t require anything. Mr. Baugher said Penn DOT will probably require 
driveway improvements. He said the property currently has on-site sewer which won’t 
work for a daycare.  He said there’s no decent access to Penn Village to get to the 
sewer line without purchasing an easement. They discussed the location of manholes 
that the property might be able to hook in to and Engineer Bortner advised they speak 
to WWTP Superintendent Mahone.  Planner Black advised Ms. Bortner to look at the 
overall cost of the project before committing to the purchase.  He said, in addition to the 
sewer, the parking lot is stone and will need to be paved and made ADA compliant 



4 
 

which will require stormwater changes and these expenses add up quickly.  The 
planners made suggestions of other vacant properties in Penn Township that might 
work for a daycare.  The daycare would like to stay in South Western School District so 
students can be bussed to their facility for after-school-care.  Ms. Bortner asked if there 
are any outright objections to this use before they purchase the property.  
Commissioner Klunk said it would be a great use for the property and there are no 
objections as long as they meet the requirements for a special exception.     
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:54 P.M. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Angela M. Hallett, Recording Secretary 
 
 

 


